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ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT '
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHREE INVESTMENT AND FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shree Investment and Finance Company Limited (referred to
as the “"Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023),
and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement
of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023), its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs)~Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ICAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements,in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

a) Information Technology (‘IT’) systems and controls impacting financial reporting in
relation to the Company .

. k;y Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The IT environment of the Company, is In assessing the integrity of the IT systems relevant
complex and involves a large number of to financial reporting, our team obtained an
independent and interdependent IT systems understanding of the IT infrastructure and IT
used in the operations of the Company for systems relevant to the Bank's financial reporting
processing and recording a large volume of process for evaluation and testing of relevant IT

transactions at numerous locations. general controls and IT application cont E;S_JE;.

D
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The accuracy and reliability of the financial
reporting process depends on the IT systems
and the related control environment, including:

= |IT general controls over user access
management and change management
across applications, networks, database,
and operating systems;

» |T application controls.

Due to the pervasive nature, complexity and
importance of the impact of the IT systems
and related control environment on the
Company's financial reporting process, we
have identified testing of such IT systems and
related control environment as a Key Audit
Matter for the current year audit.

ltd.

We gathered a comprehensive understanding of IT
applications landscape implemented at the Bank. It
was followed by process understanding, mapping of
applications to the same and understanding financial
risks posed by people-process and technology.

We also assessed the operating effectiveness of
controls over granting, removal and periodical
review of access rights. We further tested the
segregation of duties, including preventive controls
to ensure that access to change applications, the
operating system, or databases in the production
environment was granted only to authorized
personnel.

Other areas that were assessed under the IT control
environment were whether requests for access to
systems were appropriately logged, reviewed and
authorized. Entity level controls pertaining to policy
and procedure were also part of our audit procedure.

Where deficiencies were
compensating controls or
procedures.

identified, we tested
performed alternate

b) Identification and provisioning for non-performing assets (‘NPAs’) in relation to the

Company

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 31 Ashad 2080: NPR 5,641 million; Provision
for NPA as at 31 Ashad 2080: NPR 53.71 million

(Refer Schedule 4.6, 4.7 and Note 3.4.5 to the financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

The Nepal Rastra Bank ("NRB") guidelines on
the recognition of Interest Income and Unified
Directives prescribe the prudential norms for
Income Recognition, Identification and
Classification of Non-Performing Advances,
and Provisioning for Loans and Advances.

The Bank is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the identification and
provision required against NPAs by applying
quantitative as well as qualitative factors.

The risk of identification of NPAs is affected
by factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

The provisioning for identified NPAs is
estimated based on ageing and classification
of NPAs, recovery estimates, the value of

RY¥ | SAfad! afie gfiaes 008 /oo

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our key procedures included? but were not limited
to, the following:

» We understood the process & controls, and
tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls, including IT-based controls,
focusing on the following:

a) Approval of new lending facilities against the
Bank's credit policies and the performance of
annual loan assessments.

Controls over the monitoring of credit quality
which amongst other things included, the
monitoring of overdue reports, drawing
power limits, pending security creation.

b)

Identification and classification of NPAs in
line with NRB's circular, the impairment
requirement as per carve out on NFRS 9

-—

c)




security and other qualitative factors and is
subject to the minimum provisioning norms
specified by NRB and impairment of risk
assets as per carve out provided by ICAN.

The identification of NPAs and provisioning
for advances require a significant level of
estimation and given its significance to the
overall audit including possible observation by
NRB which could result in disclosure in the
financial statements.

The risk of deficit in collateral as required by
NRB Directives 2 for the credit facility
provided to various borrowers which may
cause financial loss to the Bank.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the financial statements, the
heightened regulatory inspections and the
significant auditor attention required, we have
identified this as a Key Audit Matter for the
current year’s audit.

3t ScaCdioe UUS bISalled . fal.
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provided by the Bank and certain qualitative
aspects; and

d) Assessment of adequacy of NPA provisions
being the higher of NRB norms and carve out
on NFRS 9 provided by ICAN.

To test the identification of loans with default
events and other triggers, we selected a sample
of performing loans and independently assessed
whether there was a need to classify such loans
as NPAs.

Performed inquiries with the credit and risk
departments to ascertain if there were indicators
of stress or an occurrence of an event of default
in a particular loan account or any product
category which needed to be considered as NPA.

As per our review of the impairment calculation,
we noted that the impairment is calculated higher
of the following prescribed method:

i. NRB Regulation;

ii. NFRS Pronouncement with specific
reference to Carve out on NFRS-9
provided by ICAN.

c) Provisions for litigation and taxation and contingent liabilities in relation to the Company

(Note 4.28 and Note 4.6.1 to the financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

*

The Company has ongoing legal and tax
cases which is pending in different courts of
Nepal. Significant management judgement is
needed in determining whether an obligation
exists and whether a provision should be
recognized as at the reporting date, in
accordance with the accounting criteria set
under Nepal Accounting Standard 37 -
Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and
Contingent Assets (‘'NAS 37’), or whether it
needs to be disclosed as a contingent liability.

Further, significant judgements are also
involved in measuring such obligations, the
most significant of which are:

= Assessment of liability: Judgement is
involved in the determination of whethel an
outflow in respect of identified material
matters are probable and can be estimated

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our key procedures included, but were not limited
to, the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Company's
process for determining tax liabilities, tax
provisions and contingent liabilities pertaining to
taxation matters;

Obtained list of cases / matters in respect of
which litigations were outstanding as at reporting
date.

Evaluated the merit of the subject matter under
consideration with reference to the grounds
presented therein and available independent
legal / tax advice;

Review and analysis of evaluation of the
contentions of the Company through discussions,
collection of details of the subject matter under

consideration, the likely outcome——and
“eSOCIqES
ap
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reliably

= Adequacy of provisions: The
appropriateness of assumptions and
judgements used in the estimation of
significant provisions; and 2

= Adequacy of disclosures of provision for
liabilities and charges, and contingent
liabilities.

We determined the above area as a Key Audit

Matter in view of associated uncertainty

relating to the outcome of these matters which

requires application of judgment in

interpretation of law.

consequent potential outflows on those issues;

Further, we assessed whether the disclosures
related to significant litigation and taxation
matters were appropriate and adequate in terms
of whether the potential liabilties and the
significant uncertainties were fairly presented.

d) Investment valuation, classification and impairment

(Refer Note 4.8 “Investment Securities” and Note 3.4 of the financial statements for investments)

Key Audit Matter

Investment portfolio of the company consists
of Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Treasury
bills, Development bonds, units of Mutual
Funds and quoted and unquoted equity
instruments. These instruments were valued
in accordance with NFRS 9 read with NRB
Directive 8. Investments in NRB bonds,
government bonds and treasury bills are
measured at amortized cost whereas
investment in equity instruments, other than
those held for trading are measured at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income.
Given the varieties of methods recommended
for valuation of investments based on nature
of cash flows and the business model
adopted, complexity of calculation and the
significance of amount involved in such
investments, such has been calculated as
Key Audit Matter in our audit. ’

.
How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit approach regarding verification of process

of

investment valuation, classification and

impairment included the following:

L]

Review of company’'s investment and its
valuation with reference to NFRS and NRB
Directive.

For investments valued at amortized cost, we
recalculated and checked the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) and amortization schedule on test
basis.

For quoted investments valued at fair value
through other comprehensive income, we
ensured that the fair valuation has been done at
closing'transaction pricé in NEPSE as on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) and for
unquoted investment the fair value being taken
as par value of the investment.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Report of the Board of Directors (BOD), including annexures to the BOD's
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to ceage to continue as a going
concern. .

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation. =
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, statement of financial position as at 16 July
2023 (31 Ashadh 2080), statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company;
and proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Company including relevant records
relating to preparation of the aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and records of the Company.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the company we have not come across cases where Board of
Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the
accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Bank and violated any
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the
Company, its depositors and investors.

P. & B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 12 December 2023
UDIN No: 231213CA010945katz
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Shree Investment & Finance Co. Ltd.
Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information:  FY 2079-80

Reporting Entity

Shree Investment & Finance Co Ltd. (SIFCO) or the “Company" was incorporated in the year 1994 (2051 BS), as a
Financial Services Company and a Merchant Bank under the Nepal Finance Company Act, 1985 and the Nepal
Company Act, 1964. The Company has been licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank as “C" class Financial Institution to
undertake financial services and merchant banking activities in the country.

Basis of Preparation

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) read along with the approved carve-outs and in the format as per Directive No. 4 of
NRB Directives, 2079. Historical cost convention is used for financial statement recognition and measurement
except otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than historical costs, such as fair value has
been applied, these have been disclosed in accordance with the applicable reporting framework.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes
to the Accounts. These financial statements comply with the regulations of NRB, requirement of Companies Act
and provide appropriate disclosures required under regulations of the Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON).

Reporting period and approval of financial statements
The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for
the English calendar are as follows:

Comparative SFP* Date 32 Ashadh 2079 16 July 2022
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2078 - 32 Ashadh 2079 16 July 2021 - 16 July 2022
First NFRS SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2074 15 July 2017
Current NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2079 - 31 Ashadh 2080 17 July 2022 - 16 July 2023
Current SFP Date 31 Ashad 2080 16 July 2023

*SFP = statement of financial position

The approval of financial statements of the Company along with the accompanied notes to the financial
statements were adopted by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on and the Board acknowledges its
responsibility of preparation of the financial statements. The approved financial statements have been
recommended for approval of the shareholders in the 29th annual general meeting of the Company.

Responsibility for financial statements

The board of directors of the company is responsible for preparation of financial statement of the company
which reflect true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the company. The board is view that
the financial statements in it's entirely have been prepared in conformity with the prevailing financial reporting
standard, regulations of the NRB and requirements of the Companies Act 2063.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes
to the Accounts.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded off to the nearest rupee except where
indicated otherwise.

Il @i ufddes 06-/oco | I
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Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances
and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in respect of items where the
choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial
statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate. It is also
required to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.

The most significant area of assumption and estimation applied in application of accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial statements are listed herein:

- Determination of fair value of financial instruments;

- Classification of financial assets & liabilities;

. Impairment losses on financial assets and on financial liabilities;

«  Determination of useful economic life of property, plant and equipment;
«  Assumptions of current tax as well as deferred tax ;

+  Measurement of defined benefit obligation;

. Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

Information about significant areas of estimation and critical judgments in applying accounting policies,
other than those stated above, and which have significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements are described in respective notes.

The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

The accounting policies as explained in Note 3 herein are consistently applied to except otherwise stated. They
are further included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements, and the effect and nature of
the changes, if any, are disclosed. The accounting estimates are appropriately disclosed in the relevant sections
of the Notes to Accounts wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes
of accounting estimates, if any.

The accounting policies are to be applied consistently. Changes in accounting policies, if any, are to be disclosed
with the financial impact to the extent possible. When polices are not guided by the reporting framework, NFRS,
other reporting standards and generally accepted accounting principles are to be followed.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Company has adequate resources to
continue its business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, a wide range of information was
considered, which are relevant to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability,
cash flows and capital resources. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast doubt upon company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Materiality and aggregation

In the financial statements materiality and aggregation is dealt with in compliance with Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements" and within the scope of formats implemented by Nepal
Rastra Bank. Accordingly, each material class of similar items presented separately and items that are not similar
in nature or function are also presented separately unless these are immaterial.

Offsetting

In the Statement of Financial Position, financial assets and financial liabilities are netted off only when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not netted off in the
Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an accounting standard or interpretation and as
specifically disclosed in the company's accounting policy.
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2.9 Changesin Accounting Policies
The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with NFRS. The accounting
policies are applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed with the financial impact to the extent possible.

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies that most appropriately suits its circumstances
and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in respect of items where
the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the
financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.
The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements and
the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

During the current year, there is no change in accounting policies.

2.10 Reporting Pronouncements
The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective
on September 13,2013.The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated October 30, 2020 has
resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the Banks
and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of Accounting Standard Board
(ASB). Details of carve out provided are as follows:

2.10.1 NFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements
Inpara 19 of NFRS 10, a parent shall prepare consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances unless it is impracticable to do
sO.

However, this particular reporting standard is not applicable to the company.

2.10.2 NAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting
In para 2, if an entity's interim financial report is described as complying with NFRSs, it must comply
with all of the requirements of this Standard. Paragraph 19 requires certain disclosures in that regard.
However, an entity shall not require to restate its corresponding previous interim period balance if it
is impracticable to restate. However, this particular carve out is not applicable to the company for FY
2022-23.

2.10.3 NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
a) Impairment

In para 58, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any
such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impairment
loss unless the entity is a bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount
derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined
as per paragraph 63; and shall apply paragraph 63 to measure the impairment loss on financial assets
other than loan and advances. The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and
the amount of impairment loss determined as per paragraph 63.

The carve out is not optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18 to 2023-24. Company will
measure the impairment of loan and advances to customers as higher of the impairment as assessed
under NFRS or as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank. The provision is mandatory where
impairment under NFRS and impairment under NRB norms has been disclosed for comparison and the
higher of the two is charged as impairment and recognized in the financial statements.

b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of
effective interest rate

In para 9, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
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the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to
determine reliably, between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows
and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However,
in those rare cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a
financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows
over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-
22 and 2022-23. Accordingly, the Bank has opted carve out.

c¢) Impracticability to determine interest income on amortized cost

In para AG 93, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income shall
be calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless
the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-
22 and 2022-23. Accordingly, the Bank has opted carve out.

2.11 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is
material.

2.12 Limitation of NFRS implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same would exceed the
benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following items which were
measured or recognized as stated:

1) Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at its initial recognition. Subsequent recognition of
FVTOCI and FVTPL financial instruments are measured at fair value.

2) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
after deducting the net of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized past service
cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

a. Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date i.e.
when control is transferred to the Company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Company measures goodwill at the acquisition date as;
- the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
+ the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire, plus

- if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the preexisting equity interest in
the acquire, less

« the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.
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« When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

- The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

- Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Company incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

- Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured, and settlement is
accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognized in profit or loss except for measurement period adjustment.

There is no business combination during the fiscal year 2079-80.

b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
For each business combination, the Company elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree either at fair value; or at their proportionate share of the acquirer's identifiable net assets,
which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Company's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests
are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The Company does not have any NCl as on reporting date.

C. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity if it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.

The Company reassesses whether it has control if there are changes to one or more of the elements
of control. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are combined
line by line by adding the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiary. The carrying amount of the parent's investment in subsidiary and
the parent's portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated in full. All intra group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (such
as interest income and technical fee) are eliminated in full while preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

d. Loss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Company derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
carrying amount of non-controlling interests and the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity related to the subsidiary. Further parent's share of components previously recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCl) is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings as appropriate. Any
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in the profit or loss. If the Group retains any
interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control
is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of influence retained.

e. Transaction Elimination on Consolidation
Allintra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment

3.3 Cash and Cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand and highly liquid financial assets with original
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
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their fair value and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1

3.4.2

Recognition
The Company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the terms of the
contract, which is the trade date or the settlement date.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company applies NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The recognition,
and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, the impairment of financial assets, and
hedge accounting. The Financial Instrument has been classified in line with the provision of NFRS 9 as
mentioned in the point no. 3.5.2.

Financial asset is any asset that is:
Cash;

b.  anequity instrument of another entity;

o

c.  acontractual right:
- toreceive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially favorable to the entity; or

d. acontract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

- a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of
the entity's own equity instruments; or

- a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

A financial liability is any liability that is:
a.  contractual obligation:
- todeliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

b.  acontract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

- a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of
the entity's own equity instruments; or

— aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

Classification
Financial assets are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At Fair Value — through Profit or Loss
2 Held at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income  Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
3 Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

Financial Liabilities are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At fair value through Profit or Loss
2 Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate
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At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments (financial assets and liabilities) at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, or a portion of afinancial asset, from its financial statements
where the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have expired, or have been transferred, usually
by sale, and with them either substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or significant risks and
rewards, along with the unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability has been settled, has expired or has been
extinguished.

Determination of Fair Value

The Company applies NAS 39. All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the
date of initial recognition and, depending on the classification of the asset or liability, may continue
to be held at fair value either through profit or loss or other comprehensive income. The fair value of a
financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Wherever possible, fair value is determined by reference to a quoted market price for that instrument.
For many of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, quoted prices are not available, and valuation
models are used to estimate fair value. The models calculate the expected cash flows under the terms
of each specific contract, and then discount these values back to a present value based on interest rate
yields and volatility of currency rates.

The financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate.

On initial recognition, itis presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is observable
information available in an active market to the contrary. The best evidence of an instrument's fair
value on initial recognition is typically the transaction price.

Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs and these may vary from product to
product and change over time. Factors include the depth of activity in the relevant market, the type
of product, whether the product is new and not widely traded in the marketplace, the maturity of
market modelling and the nature of the transaction (bespoke or generic). To the extent that valuation
is based on models or inputs that are not observable in the market, the determination of fair value can
be more subjective, dependent on the significance of the unobservable input to the overall valuation.
Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, for example by reference
to similar assets, similar maturities or other analytical techniques.

The sensitivity of valuations used in the financial statements to possible changes in significant
unobservable inputs is not applicable to the Company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgement and complexity,
in particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs (‘Level 3' assets and liabilities).
This note provides information on these instruments, including the related unrealized gains and losses
recognized in the period, a description of significant valuation techniques and unobservable inputs,
and a sensitivity analysis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires an entity to classify its assets and liabilities according to a
hierarchy that reflects the observability of significant market inputs. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are defined below.

Level 1- Valuation Technique using quoted market prices

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active market. Such
instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
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active markets where the quoted price is readily available, and the price represents actual and regularly
occurring market transactions. An active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient
volume and frequency to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2- Valuation technique using observable inputs

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are observable
in an active market. Valuations based on observable inputs uses market standard pricing techniques,
and are commonly traded in markets where all the significant inputs are observable.

Level 3- Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). A valuation input is considered observable
if it can be directly observed from transactions in an active market, or if there is compelling external
evidence demonstrating an executable exit price. Unobservable input levels are generally determined
via reference to observable inputs, historical observations or using other analytical techniques. These
are financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are
unobservable.

Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have
been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the
asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
- Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

- When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

- Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of
the counterpart.

- Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished
financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of
scheduled payments.

- Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and amortized cost investment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances
and amortized cost investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified.

Loans and advances and amortized cost investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and amortized cost
investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade
receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses statistical modelling of historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management's judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates
and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to
ensure that they remain appropriate.
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a) Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost

As per NAS 39

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances
to customers as well as held-to—maturity investments are impaired, and impairment losses are
recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (Top 20 borrowers and borrowers classified as
Non-Performing as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive) are assessed for individual impairment test. The
recoverable value of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct
of the borrower/past experience of the Company. Assets that are individually assessed and for which
no impairment exists are grouped with financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for impairment. The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and advances
are determined by management prudently being based on the past experience. For the purpose of
collective assessment of impairment Company has categorized assets in to five broad products as

follows:

1. Term Loan

2. Auto Loan

3. Home Loan
4. Personal Loan

5. ShortTerm Loan

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
isincreased or reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment reserve) in statement of
other comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity. If a future write—off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to the 'Statement of Profit or Loss"

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management's
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum
provisioning level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on loans
and advances including bills purchased at 1.3% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and
advances, overdraft and bills purchased in accordance with NRB directives.

Policies Adopted

As per the NFRS Carve out, the Company measures impairment loss on loan & advances as the higher
of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount
determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Company acquires or incurs principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together
for short-term profit or position taking. They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at
fair value in the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes
in fair value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as regarded as fair value through
statement of profit & loss.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified
as trading assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management purposes are measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position. Hedge accounting is not adopted for certain derivatives held for risk management
such as Forward Exchange Contracts.
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3.7 Property and Equipment
a. Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at cost, if, and
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and if the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the following:

- the cost of materials and direct labor;

- any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use;

- when the company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located; and

- Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither, class of the property and
equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date. The items of
property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure
will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are
expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the
difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized within
other income in statement of profit or loss.

b. Capital Work in Progress
Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for use are shown as capital work in progress.
c. Depreciation

Straight line method of depreciation on fixed assets is applied to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful life as per management judgment, as follows:

Computer 5 Years

Furniture and Fixture 10 Years

Office Equipment 10Years

Other Fixed Assets 10 Years

Vehicle 10 Years

Building 50 Years

Leasehold 15 years or lease period whichever is lower

Software Over the contract period (5 years if contract period not available)

Assets costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully charged to statement of profit loss in the year of purchase.
d. De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of
property and equipment is included in statement of profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless on a
sale and lease back). The gain shall be classified as revenue.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability that
the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Company, and are amortized on the basis of
their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable
that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on
the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as
incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset's
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately.
Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and equipment under
NAS 16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment"; and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS
5 - “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations". The company has recognized as investment
property such land or land and building acquired by the Bank as non-banking assets in course of recovery of
loans and advances to borrowers that have turned into chronic defaulters.

Non-banking assets (only land and building) are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition
the company has chosen to apply the cost model allowed by NAS 40 - “Investment Property" and since it is not
intended for owner-occupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are FVTOCI in
their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described
above.

3.10 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a. CurrentTax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized.
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Deposits, Debts Securities issued and subordinated liabilities
a. Deposits
The Company accepts deposits from its customers under savings account, current account and term
deposits which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions
are recorded on the company's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the
Company and represents the amount owed by the Company to the customer.

b. Debt Securities
Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the
effective interest method, except where the Company designates liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. The Company has not issued any of such debt securities.

C Subordinated Liabilities
Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the
claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Company does not have any of
such subordinated liabilities.

Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Company has a present constructive or
legal obligation that can be reliability measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be
required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may
but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income
are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary
activities of an entity when those inflows resultinincreasesin equity, other thanincreases relating to contributions
from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in
which its recoverability of income is not probable. The Company's revenue comprises of interest income, fees
and commission, remittance income, service fee, etc. and the bases of incomes recognition are as follows:

Interest Income
Interest income on FVTOCI assets and financial assets held at amortized cost shall be recognized using the
Company's normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate using effective interest rate method.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortized over the life of the loan
and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have been derived
under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material. The Company considers that the
cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit that would be derived from such
compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
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credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Contractual interest income
and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss is recognized within net interest
income.

The Company recognises the interest income on loans and advances as per Guideline on Recognition of Interest
Income, 2019.The Company has derecognised the interest income amounting to NPR 5,765,649.45 in case of
loan where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective
of the net realizable value of collateral. Further, the Company has no interest income recognized in case of loans
where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net
realizable value" of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest.

Interest capitalization as per NRB Directive No.2 (Para 39)

During the current fiscal year company has no loans and advances which has been utilized in the National
Priority sector and hence not capitalized and recognized any Interest Income.

Fees & Commission

Fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or significant act
performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining such value. Whenever, the cost of recognizing fees
and commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in determining such value, the fees and commissions
are charged off during the year.

Dividend Income

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income from other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification
of the equity investment.

Net Trading Income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realised
and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading derivatives
held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships and financial assets
and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. It includes all realised and unrealised fair value
changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain or loss on the disposal of property and equipment is determined on the difference between the asset's
carrying amount on disposal date and the disposal proceeds, net of any disposal costs. This is recognized as
an item of Other Operating Income in the year in which significant risks and rewards incidental to the asset's
ownership is transferred to the buyer.

3.14 Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Company's trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net
trading income.

3.15 Employees Benefits

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
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and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits. The Company provides
bonus at 10% of Net Profit before tax.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period):

- wages, salaries and social security contributions,
- paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
- profit-sharing and bonuses and

- non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;

i.  Defined Contribution Plan
Adefined contribution planis a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss in the periods
during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution
plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the
basic salary. The Company does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual
contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of
any plan assets are deducted.

The Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee
benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Company recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement comprises any resulting change
in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation, any related
actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost that had not previously been recognized.

Description of Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity - Funded

The gratuity provision has been provided with compliance of New Labor Act, 2074. These benefits are treated as
defined contribution plan and provided accordingly.

As these gratuities are defined benefit plans, the liability recognized in the statement of financial position is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets. Such obligations are estimated
on the basis of actuarial valuation. For those employees which has not completed 5 years of service has not been
considered for gratuity valuation and has been provided 8.33% considering as defined benefit plan.

The company has recognized gratuity obligations towards gratuity entitlement of individual employees and
meets the funding requirement to the related Defined Benefit Plan assets is managed by Citizen Investment
Trust (CIT).

An actuarial valuation is carried out every year using the Projected Unit Credit Method to ascertain the full
liability under gratuity. The Projected Unit Credit Method involves estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods and discounting the benefit
amount to determine its present value.
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Description of Defined Benefit Plan — Accumulated Leave - Non-funded

The company's net obligation towards accumulated staff leave is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. Net change in liability for accrued leave, including any actuarial gain and loss, are recognized in profit
or loss as staff expense.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Company
has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date,
then they are discounted to their present value.

Loan to employees at below-market interest rate

The company has a policy of providing loans to its employees at below-market interest rate. This asset is
bifurcated and recognized as two different elements viz. a prepaid employee benefit and a loan asset. Initially
fair value of employee loan is determined by discounting the future loan repayments using a market rate of
interest. This fair value is recognized as loan asset and any excess of the principal loan amount over the fair value
is recognized as deferred employee expenditure.

Deferred employee expenditure is amortized over the loan tenure with the amortization amount recognized as
interest income and a corresponding finance expense within the personnel expense

Interest Rate: 10.39%

Market Interest Rate: 12.69%

Total Staff Loan: NPR 40,411,058
Amortized Staff Loan: NPR 36,034,580
Unamortized Staff Loan: NPR 4,376,478

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company considers
whether:

«  The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This may be specified explicitly or implicitly and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

«  The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

«  The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.
In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either;

«  The Company has the right to operate the asset; or
«  The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right to
use of assets is the present value of the total lease payments up to the contract date from the start of contract
inclusive of any increments on the payment of the rent. The present value has been derived using the discount
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rate equal to the Company's incremental borrowing rate. The Company has applied cost model after initial
recognition on commencement date and subsequent measurement. The Company has measured the right-of-
use asset at cost:

a. Lessaccumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment and
b.  Adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's' incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

The Company presents right of use assets under Note 4.13 to the financial statements while the corresponding
lease liability is presented in Note 4.23, ‘Other Liabilities' The detail explanation for the charge of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities has been explained in Notes. 4.38.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases (that
have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. The Company recognizes lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost, or year-
end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
either the statement of profit or loss or shareholders' equity depending on the treatment of the gain or loss on
the asset or liability.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of agreement.

Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loan
commitment is the commitment where the Company has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer
or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or
letters of credit and the Company has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included
in the financial statement as commitments.

Share Capital and Reserves

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of
the Company after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Company and
distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are declared.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, corporate social
responsibility reserve, investment adjustment reserve, regulatory reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning
computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.
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3.19 Earnings per share including diluted
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.20 Segment Reporting

The Company's segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the company's management committee,
which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Company
has no practice of accounting intra segment revenue or expenses. Geographical segments are considered for
the purpose of segment reporting. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining business segment performance. The Company is organized for management and Head Office and
branches. The segment results that are reported include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly common assets, head office
expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

3.21 Carve out taken by Bank from Carve out issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal

i. Calculation of Effective Interest rate
Transaction cost and fees incurred and received in obtaining deposits and lending to customers are not
included in calculating the effective interest rate. Those costs and fees are not of material item and the
effect of these will not materially differ in the original effective interest rate and re-calculated effective
interest rate. This carve out applies till FY 2023-24.

ii. Incurred loss model to measure the Impairment Loss on Loans and advances.
Bank has applied carve out which mandate for providing loss allowance for loans and advances as per
the directive issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. This carve out applies till FY 2023-24.
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Shree Investment & Finance Co. Ltd.

Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information: FY 2079-80

5. Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1

Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Company has set clear separation between business function and risk
management function. Accordingly, the Company has set up a separate Risk Management Committee (RMC)
headed by Director as Coordinator of RMC. The RMC evaluate overall risk faced and determine the level of risks
which will be in the best interest of the Company. RMC oversees global, macro, micro and departmental level
wrisk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior
Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions
as appropriate. The RMC also develops the mechanism for assessing and reviewing its risk management policies,
processes and procedures for individual risk elements, at a regular interval, based on the main findings of
the monitoring reports and the results of analysis of developments from external market changes and other
environmental factors.

Board

| |

Risk Management Committee CEO

| |
Compliance Officer Deputy CEO

\

Operaion Incharge

Figure: Risk Management - Structure

Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Company and is responsible to frame
and implement robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction
issued by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance
with the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the Company. The board
understands the nature of risk of the company, and periodically reviews reports on risk management,
including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting
by the Risk Management.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Company has established Risk Management
Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. At least four quarterly meeting
is conducted on annual basis however number of meeting can be increased as per the requirement.
The committee supervises overall risk management of the Company broadly classified as liquidity risk,
market risk, operational risk, credit risk and residual risk.

Risk Governance

Company has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises
level arising to the company and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing
ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting
good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Company seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and
liquidity risks which arise directly through the Company's commercial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies
relating to management risk, supply risk, production risk, demand risk and collection risk.
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The Company's risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
Company's risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business,
senior management and committees. Information regarding material risk issues and compliance with
policies and standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior management and
committees.

iiii. Risk Management Policy Guidelines

The Company does not have separate Risk Management Policy for overall risk management function.
However, the Company follows Nepal Rastra Bank's Risk Management Guidelines, 2010 in order
to provide a framework for ensuring setting up of systematic Risk Management function at Shree
Investment and Finance Company limited. NRB's “Risk Management Guidelines, 2010" is a foundation
stone towards identification, measurement, monitoring and control of all the major risks that the
company is exposed. “Risk Management Guidelines, 2010" of the NRB provides guidance for designing
the Risk Management Process and the same includes policies, standards, methodologies, procedures
and limits for the implementation of the process.

iv. Internal Control
The Board is responsible for ensuring the Company has appropriate internal control framework in
place that supports the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the
Company should be looked upon with a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place
during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or
reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and enhance resilience to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and
control/monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively implemented the same at the
Company.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Audit (outsourced to external party).

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the Company through regular audit, Off Site review, AML/CFT/KYC audit and
Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audits observations are reported to the Chief Executive
Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures. Internal Audit reports are
periodically forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues appropriate
corrective action in accordance with the issue involved to the respective department, regional offices
or branch offices.

V. Risk Identified and its mitigation
B Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principal and reward associated with it due to failure of
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Company in accordance with agreed terms.
The Credit Policy Guideline have been prepared in order to mitigate/minimize the credit risk of the
Company through appropriate monitoring and reporting framework established within the Company.

Company has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective
management of Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the company, following
activities were carried out:

Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated were gone through;

Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked against Risk Appetite,
tolerance limit mentioned in Respective Product Paper Guidelines and Credit Policy;

Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Monitoring Report, Loan
Overdue Report, Loan Report, NRB reports and risk assessment reports.

Risk Management Committee (RMC) is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Hence,
overall strategy as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior
Management is responsible for implementing the company's credit risk management strategies and
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policies and ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality
of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

Company has following framework in place for the management of credit risk:
Board of Directors of the Company has approved Credit Policy.

The Board of Directors has approved product papers which need to be approved by the Board
of Directors as per regulatory requirement.

The Board level Risk Management Committee reviews various credit risks reported by the
management and recommends the Board for management of identified credit risk.

Credit Department directly manages accounts with sustained deterioration along with all
collection related activities.

Following major policies and procedural guidelines has been reviewed/approved and implemented to
manage the Credit Risk.

Credit Policy, 2076

Product papers for financing in personal Housing Loan, SME loan, Real Estate loan, Personal
Loan, Agricultural Loan, Business Finance Loan, Deprived Sector Loan, Education Loan, Hire
Purchase Loan, Share Loan.

Loan Write off Bylaws, 2073
Guidelines on Small and Medium Enterprises Loan

Further, the Company has Credit Departments in place which are responsible for performing prescribed
activities related to credit. Primary responsibility for management of credit risk lies with the Credit
departments. Department is also responsible to perform the activities as per existing internal control
system established in line with the prescribed policies, guidelines and procedures for management of
credit risk.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors Hence Overall strategy
as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management
is responsible for implementing the Company's credit risk management strategies and policies and
ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit
portfolio in accordance with these policies.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Company has financial assets consisting mainly of loans & advances and investments at amortized
cost. In these cases, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the related financial
assets.

ii. Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired nor past due or impaired

The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk,
based on the Company's internal credit rating system.
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NPR in million

Financial Assets
Assets carried at Amortised

Cost
Cash and cash equivalent 351 - - - - 351
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 313 - - - - 313

Placement with Bank and
Financial Institutions

Loans and advances 5513 60.35 30.07 10 27.84 5,642

Fair Value through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instru-
ments.

Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI)

Investment securities 2,374 - - - - 2,374
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -
Total 8,551 60 30.07 10 27.84 8,680

B Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the
company. Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions of the Company and is influenced by all
resources, including human resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the Company to
carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal and external sources such
as fraud, business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure in execution
and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed process
designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any business function or the business supporting
functions.

The Company is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical
business practices and therefore to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and
is in a sound position to deal effectively with those events that do occur. The actions of the board
and senior management, and policies, processes and systems provide the foundation for a sound risk
management culture

Company seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use of key control standards, key control
self-assessments and key risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control operational
risk events through timely acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying vulnerabilities. The
Company shall also ensure highest level of governance standards and adherence to Code of Conduct
and robust compliance to all regulatory as well as the Company's internal policy, procedures and
guidelines.

Effective policies, procedural guidelines and standard operating procedure are crucial tools for sound
risk management. Therefore, adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures and their
effective implementation is closely monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing
relevance in line with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry.
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Following major existing Policies/ guiding documents having close bearing with management of
operation risk has been reviewed/approved and implemented:
% Operating Manual for Cash Department, 2076
+ Branch/ Department Establishment and Operation Policy, 2073
% KYCPolicy and Manual, 2073
+ Internal Audit Manual, 2065

°,

+ Investment Policy, 2070

°,

+* Financial Administration By-law, 2073
% Employee Service By-laws, 2074
% Election By Laws, 2064

°,

% Computer and Information Policy and Manual, 2076

°,

% Money laundering Policy and Manual, 2079

°,

% Cash Management Manual, 2076

°,

% Operation Guidelines, 2076

°,

%+ Operation Guidelines on Saving Account of each Nepali Citizens, 2076
% Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 2075

% Mobile Banking Policy 2078

* Removable Media Policy 2078

°,

% Business Continuity/ Disaster Recovery Plan 2078

°,

¢+ Board of Directors Literacy Program 2075

¢+ Board of Directors Meeting Operation Manual 2078
+ Assets & Liabilities related Policy 2066

+  Credit Policy Guideline 2076

% Subsidiary Loan Procedure 2076

% Off Balance Sheet Items Policy 2076

% Loan Write Off Policy 2073

+ Risk and Tolerance Limit 2080

% Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Policy 2080 (ICAAP)

% Contingency Funding Plan 2080
% Health & Safety Policy 2080

Market Risk & Liquidity Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Company resulting from movements in market prices, in particular,
changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. Market risk is
defined as the risk of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions arising from movements in market
prices. The risks subject to this requirement are:

a. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

b. Currency Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in
the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of
changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

c. Equity Price Risk: Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The major sources of market risk for the company are interest rate risk, currency risk and equity
price risk. Company identifies and manage these risks as per the laid down policies and procedures.
The company regularly assess and monitor the financial position and transaction of the Company.
Movement of Company's interest yield, cost and spread is calculated and analyzed on daily basis to
identify, assess and mitigate possible risk exposure.

In order to evaluate the liquidity position, Company has been calculating and evaluating liquidity ratio.
Major inflows/outflows having impact on the liquidity is monitored. Transactions which have material
impact on the liquidity position of the Company are communicated without any delay to relevant
department that manages fund. Also, regulatory limit of credit deposit position is also monitored.
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The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on an undiscounted cash
flow basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity
outgo arises, taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

Amount in NPR Million

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 351 - - - 351
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 313 - - - 313
Placement with Bank and Financial i i i i
Institutions

Derivative financial instruments. - - - - -
Other trading assets - - = - .
Loans and advances 1,077 571 1,712 2,282 5,642
Investment Securities 2,374 - - - 2,374
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -
Investment in associates - - = - -

Other assets 21 - - - 21
Total 4,136 571 1,712 2,282 8,701
Liabilities

|[:1L;teitutit§ns Bank and Financial 423 i i i 423
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 180 - - - 180
Derivative financial instruments - - - -
Deposits from customers 580 119 1,673 4,438 6,810
Borrowing - - - - -
Other liabilities 76 - - - 76
Debt securities issued - - - - -
Total 1,258 119 1,673 4,438 7,488

5.2 Capital Management

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures
The Company assesses and maintains primary and secondary capital as per Form No 1.1 and 1.2
provided in NRB Directive 1.

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is
meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the Nepal Rastra Bank. The adequacy of the Company's
capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by the Basel
Committee and adopted by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and sustain the future development of the business.

The Company has complied with Capital Adequacy requirement of the Nepal Rastra Bank.
The Company's regulatory capital consists of the following elements

Tier 1 Capital or Core Capital, which includes Paid Up Capital, Statutory General Reserves, Capital
Redemption Reserve, Retained Earnings and deductions of Deferred Tax Assets, Miscellaneous
expenditure not written off, Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Tier 2 Capital or Supplementary Capital, which includes General Loan Loss Provision, Exchange
Equalization Reserves, Subordinated Term Debt, Investment Adjustment Reserve, Other Reserve
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Finance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum
paid up capital of NPR 800million by mid-July 2017. As on the reporting date, the Company's paid up
capital stood at NPR 981.68 million (Previous Year NPR 958.67 million) and is in compliance with the
requirement.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Quantitative disclosures
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

a  Paid up Equity Share Capital 981,683 958,675
b Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares - -
¢ Share Premium - -
d  Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - -
e  Statutory General Reserves 259,667 244,664
f  Retained Earnings 50,766 74,592
g  Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) - -
h  Capital Redemption Reserve - -

i Capital Adjustment Reserve - -
j  Dividend Equalization Reserves - -
k  Other Free Reserve - -
| Less: Goodwill - -
m  Less: Deferred Tax Assets - -
n  Less:Fictitious Assets = =
Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests = =

o T O

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits - -

-

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments = =
s Less:Reciprocal crossholdings - -
Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 70,302 70,302

[

Less: Other Deductions - -
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP 6.4a(1) Less: Shortfall in Provision - -

Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted
SRP6dal) i P - -

Core (Tier 1 Capital) 1,221,813 1,207,629
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Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components
e L G
(NPRin‘000) | (NPRin‘000)
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt - -
Hybrid Capital Instruments - -

a

b

c

D  General loan loss provision 72,633 70,982

E Exchange Equalization Reserve = S

f Investment Adjustment Reserve 849 849

g Asset Revaluation Reserve = -

h Other Reserves - -
Total Supplementary Capital 73,482 71,831

The Company has not issued any subordinated term debt.

Total qualifying capital

This Year Previous Year
(NPR in‘000) (NPR in‘000)

A Core Capital 1,221,813 1,207,629
B Supplementary Capital 73,482 71,831
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 1,295,295 1,279,460

Capital Adequacy Ratio

This Year Previous Year
Ratio (%) Ratio (%)

A Core Capital 19.58 19.07
B Supplementary Capital 1.17 1.14
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 20.75 20.21

Summary of Company's internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable

The Company prepares Budget and Strategy and to achieve the long term plans the Company prepares
annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans as stipulated in the Budget Policy and strategy Document
of the Company. To ensure that the Company's capital adequacy commensurate to demand of the
Company's capital required by the business planning, the Management and the Board prudently and
proactively engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment, stress testing and scenarios
testing, monitoring and reporting.

The Company follows Stress Testing Guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in order to assess the
vulnerability of the Company under various stress situations typically, application of “what if" scenarios,
especially in the problematic identification of low frequency but high severity events and identifying
expected and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact of large, but still plausible events
and understanding the overall risk profile in a coherent and consistent framework, including impact
analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in
case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR
100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation
of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.
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Risk Exposures

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

m Risk Weighted Exposure Amou‘gagl\ e

A Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 5,554,554
B Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 430,772
C  Amount to be maintained for Market Risk -
Total Risk Weighted Exposure (Before adjustments of pillar II) 5,985,326

Adjustments under Pillar Il

Add: RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of gross income. 76,028
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 3% of
179,559
RWE
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 6,240,914

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
At the month end of Ashadh, 2080

(Rs. in '000)
=
o 74
s | e5 | 9 38
A. Balance Sheet Exposures § §_ % :-% % % §
0 D i i = X =
a2 | b | c ldabc| e | fde
Cash Balance 95,39 95,39 0%
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 313,276 313,276 0%
Gold 0%
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities 2,178,750 2,178,750 0%
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0%
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0%
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA 0-1) 0%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-2) 20%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-3) 50%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-4-6) 100%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-7) 150%
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's 0%
recognized by the framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks 100%
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities 100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 20%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 50%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA7) 150%
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital 565,357 565,357 20% 113,071
adequacy requirements
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital 100%
adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 20%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 50%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 100%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 150%
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Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC 20%
region operating with a buffer of 1% above their
respective regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score 80%

equiv. to AAA)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score 85%

equiv. to AA+ to AA-)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating 90%

score equiv. to A+ to A-)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating score 100%

equiv. to BBB+& below)

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated) 3,264,581 3,264,581 100% 3,264,581

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 20%

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 50%

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 100%

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA7) 150%

Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 1,165,541 97165 1,068,376 75% 801,282

Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except 100%

granularity

Claims secured by residential properties 520,794 520,794 60% 312,476

Claims not fully secured by residential properties - 150%

Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue) 14,353 14,353 100% 14,353

Claims secured by Commercial real estate 94,838 94,838 100% 94,838

Past due claims (except for claims secured by 58,475 33,730 24,745 150% 3717

residential properties)

High Risk claims 265,367 265,367 150% 398,051

Lending Against Securities (Bonds) 100%

Lending Against Shares (upto Rs. 2.5 Million) 11,530 11,530 100% 11,530

Investments in equity and other capital instruments 91,936 91,936 100% 91,936

of institutions listed in stock exchange

Investments in equity and other capital instruments 752 752 150% 1,129

of institutions not listed in the stock exchange

Staff loan secured by residential property 38,028 38,028 50% 19,014

Interest Receivable/claim on government securities 30,311 30,311 0% -

Cash in transit and other cash items in the process - 20%

of collection

Other Assets (as per attachment) 176,764 176,764 100% 176,764

TOTAL (A) 8,886,056 33,730 97,165 8,755,160 5,336,147
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Book Value P?o[:z:ilcf;; Ehglz:; Net Value Wel?;ﬂ: RWE

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter 800

guarantee domestic counterparty 800 40% 320

Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 55,223 55,223 20% 11,044

Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) 413,575 413,575 50% 206,787

Other Contingent Liabilities 254 254 100% 254

Unpaid Guarantee Claims - 200% -

TOTAL (B) 469,853 469,853 218,406

I;’;‘;'(E;NE for credit Risk Before Adjustment 360900 33730 7165 9225014 5,554,554

Adjustments under Pillar Il

SRP 6.4a(3) - Add 10% of the loans & facilities in

excess of Single Obligor Limits to RWE

SRP 6.4a(4) - Add 1% of the contract (sale) value in

case of the sale of credit with recourse to RWE

Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank's

adjustments under Pillar Il 9,355,909 33,730 97,165 9,225,014 5,554,554
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
At the month end of Ashadh, 2080

Particulars

Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income
Other Operating Income
Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense
during the period

Gross income (a)
Alfa (b)
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]

Capital Requirement for operational risk (d)
(average of ¢)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement

of 10%) in times (e)

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

(Rs. in '000)

2076/077 2077/078 2078/079

259,385 216,382 216,619
38,050 25,684 35,812
4,655 54,815 3,717
21,644 (12,501) (2,727)
323,734 284,381 253,428
15% 15% 15%
48,560 42,657 38,014
43,077
10
430,772

SRP 6.4a (8) Adjustments under Pillar Il (If Gross Income for the last three years is negative)

1

c)

Rest
Sub
Dou
Loss
Tota

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific
Provision) of related month

Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5%
of net credit and investment)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement
of 11%) in times

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g)
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f+g]

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

Particulars

ructured / Reschedule Loans

Standard Loans 24,010

btful Loans 8,598
21,428

[ NPAs 54,036

FY 2022-23
Amount in NPR‘000'

9.09

430,772

FY 2021-22
Amount in NPR‘000'

6,003 18,007 5,833 1,458 4,375
4,097 4,501 14,876 7,438 7,438
21,428 - 12,654 12,654 -
31,528 22,508 33,363 21,550 11,813
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Amountin NPR

- As at 16 July 2023 As at 16 July 2022
Financial assets : : : :
Carying Value Carying Value

Assets
Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 350,953,777 350,953,777 653,447,470 653,447,470
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 313,276,427 313,276,427 208,195,939 208,195,939
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 47 5,335,764,987 5,335,764,987 5,088,215,765 5,088,215,765

5,999,995,191 5,999,995,191 5,949,859,175 5,949,859,175
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments. 44 -
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI)
Investment securities 438 2,373,826,447 2,373,826,447 2,536,429,204 2,536,429,204
Investment in subsidiaries 4.1 -

2,373,826,447 2,373,826,447 2,536,429,204 2,536,429,204
Liabilities
Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 422,538,329 422,538,329 334,861,438 334,861,438
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 179,600,000 179,600,000 867,441,661 867,441,661
Deposits from customers 4.2 6,809,917,912 6,809,917,912 6,417,561,607 6,417,561,607
Debt securities issued 424 - -

7,412,056,241 7,412,056,241 7,619,864,706 7,619,864,706
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Derivative financial instruments 419

4.3.1 FairValue Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amountin NPR

Falrvalue
Asat16July2023 | Asat16July2022
eve) ||

Fair Value through profit and loss

Financial Assets

Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -
Financial Liabilities

Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets

Investment securities at OCI

- Quoted equity securities 1 164,012,861 170,138,503
- Unquoted equity securities 3 752,500 752,500
Investment in subsidiaries - -
Total 164,765,361 170,891,003
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Financial Instruments held at amortised cost

Financial assets

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Loan and advances to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers
Accounts receivable

Accrued Income

Total

Financial liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Provisions

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total

5.4 Segment Analysis

5.4.1

5.4.2

General Information

.0
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As at 16 July 2023

2,209,061,086

305,772,600
5,335,774,987
3,839,670

7,854,438,344

422,538,329
179,600,000
6,809,917,912

75,546,838

7,487,603,079
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As at 16 July 2022

2,298,468,200
67,070,000

390,358,500
5,088,215,765
1,307,542

7,845,420,008

334,861,438
867,441,661
6,417,561,607

78,704,874

7,698,569,579

The Company's segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8, Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the company's
top-level management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments.

Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue from external customers
Intersegment revenues

Net Revenue

Interest Revenue

Interest Expenses

Net Interest revenue
Depreciation and amortization
Segment profit/(loss)

Entity's interest in the profit or loss of associates
accounted for using equity method

Impairment of assets
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

609,457,712
609,457,712
615,881,587
505,648,638
110,232,950
8,107,784
66,616,713

45,651,148
6,332,617,376
4,849,640,192

421,144,278
421,144,278
379,032,354
272,467,850
106,564,503
6,691,618
42,101,982

61,446,887
2,532,916,559
2,657,723,550

In NPR

1,030,601,990
1,030,601,990
994,913,941
778,116,488
216,797,453
14,799,401
108,718,695

107,098,035
8,865,533,934
7,507,363,742
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5.4.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
In NPR

Total revenue for reportable segments 1,030,601,990
Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity's revenues 1,030,601,990
Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segment 108,718,695
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits =
Unallocated amount -

Profit before income tax 108,718,695
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 8,865,533,934

Other assets -
Unallocated amounts -

Entity's assets 8,865,533,934
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 7,507,363,742

Other liabilities -
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity's liabilities 7,507,363,742

Information about geographical areas

Interest Income 98,169,298 692,301,888 81,690,556 115787,552 6964,647 994,913,941
r:ce;ri‘ecomm'ss'on 2,953,805 17645292 2,131,156  2,682260 457,500  25870,103
Other Operating Income 45328 8730811 574915 365999 100,893 9,817,946
Total Revenue 101,168,521 718,677,991 84,396,627 118835811 7,523,040 1,030,601,990
Percentage % 9.82% 69.73% 8.19% 1153%  0.73% 100%

5.4.4 Information about major customers
The Company does not have any major customers which accounts for more than 10% of entity's
revenue.

5.5 Share Options and Share based Payment
The Company does not have a policy for share options to its employees. Similarly, during the year the Company
has not made any payments or settlements by issuing new shares to its employees.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment
Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28.
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5.6.1 Income Tax Liability

The Company has received assessment order from Inland Revenue Department (IRD) on the income
tax return filed under self-assessment for the financial year 2051/52, 2052/53, and 2053/54 assessing
additional tax liability of Rs 1,070,247.98.The Company had appealed against assessment order received
from tax office in Revenue Tribunal depositing Rs 816,045.23 as advance tax and security deposit. The
case was decided in favor of the Company by Revenue Tribunal on Chaitra 2059 and in certain aspects
by Supreme Court. Letter was sent to Inland Revenue Department, Babar Mahal for adjustment of
remaining amount Rs 254,202.75 which has been disclosed as Contingent liability in Note 4.28.

Further, tax assessment of fiscal year 2073/74, additional tax liability of NPR 1,216,751.59. The company
has appealed against tax assessment order received from tax office in Revenue Tribunal depositing NPR
438,296.54 as security deposit on 2080/02/07 and in IRD for administrative review amounting to NPR
608,376 on 2078/06/20.

The Company has filed tax returns to the IRD up to the financial years 2078/79 under self-assessment
procedures and assessment up to FY 2074-75 has been completed by IRD.

5.7 Related Party Disclosures
The Company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24,

Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Dinesh Raj Joshi Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Mamata Adhikari Director
Lilamani Neupane, Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel

Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 719,800 during the fiscal year. There were 13 Board
Meetings conducted during the fiscal year.

The Chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 9,000 and NPR 8000 per meeting respectively
for Board meeting.

The composition of Board of Directors is as follows:

Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Dinesh Raj Joshi Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Mamata Adhikari Independent Director

The Board Members have not been provided with any facilities other than meeting allowances.

5.7.2 Amount paid to Chief Executive Officer
The Board of Directors have reappointed Mr. Lilamani Neupane as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 2078/08/23 for the period of 4 years. CEO has been paid a total of NPR.
8,266,922 and has been provided vehicle facility for official purpose.

The Salary and benefits paid to the CEO are as follow:

4,718,138 471,814 1,353,553 1,723,417 = 8,266,922

St e fdaed 00-/oco | /9



3t ScACdioe UUS BISallod . fal.

) Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

UG R Jhdle T BT golloid U= G Hweam

Compensation Details for Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel includes members of Management Committee of the Company and
includes the following members;

Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Dinesh Raj Joshi Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Mamata Adhikari Director
Lilamani Neupane Chief Executive Officer

The compensation paid to the Key Management Personnel's as below:

1 Compensation to members of BOD 719,800
2  Compensation to CEO 8,266,922
Total of Key Management Personnel Compensation 8,986,722

5.8 Events after reporting date
The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or
non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with
additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible financial
impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2023 till the signing of this financial
statement on December 12, 2023.

5.9 Non-Banking Assets
Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are FVTOCI in
their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable. Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been shown under
investment property. It has been recognized at lower of fair value or amount due at the time of assumption of
NBA.

The likely recovery of Non-Banking Assets amounting to NPR 1,001,250 is remote; therefore, the NBA has been
fully impaired since the First Time Adoption date of NFRS i.e., 15 July, 2017.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described

above.

In NPR
Kamal Khawas 13" July 2003 701,250 701,250
Shambhu Thapa 19" June 2008 300,000 300,000
Hungry Hunter & Cottage 23 May 2023 5,160,000 -
Krishna Prasad Bhurtel 23" May 2023 4,888,600 -
Anita Gyawali 16" July 2023 1,821,000 -
Total 12,870,850 1,001,250
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5.9.1 Movement of Non-Banking Assets

Outstanding Balance as at 16 July 2022 - -
Add: Assets accepted during the year 11,869,600 =
Less: Assets sold during the year - -
Less: Net Changes in fair value - -
Outstanding Balance as at 16 July 2023 11,869,600 -

5.10 Finance and Operating Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

The details of Right-to-use assets are as follows:

Right to use assets FY 2079/80
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2079 27,638,842
Additional for this year 12,748,710
Depreciation (7,695,449)
Total 32,692,103

Right to use assets has been presented in annex 4.13 property, plant and equipment.

The details of lease liability are as follows:

Lease Liability FY 2079/80
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2079 29,387,119
Additional for this year 12,748,710
Interest Expenses 3,054,572
Actual payment for the year (9,194,518)
Total 35,995,883

The actual lease liability for the year is shown as below:

Actual Lease Liability FY 2079/80
Less than one year 9,194,518
Between one to five years 33,600,805
More than five years 11,708,387
Total 54,503,710

5.11 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that measures the amount of
net income/ loss earned per share of stock outstanding. In other words, this is the amount of money each share
of stock would receive if all of the profits were distributed to the outstanding shares at the end of the year. It is
calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders consists of the earnings of the Bank after deduction of
all expenses, tax expense and preference dividends, differences arising on the settlement of preference shares,
and other similar effects of preference shares classified as equity.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the Bank has been based on the profit/ loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding as tabulated below;

Il amfie fdaed 00/oco | 3



/' Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

AYTS g Fepale T qETD] golSTd UH U HReIl
Year ended Year ended
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR. 75,014,783 90,900,259
We|ghted average of number of equity shares used in computing basic Nos. 9,816,832 9,586,750
earnings per share (b)
Basic earnings per equity share of Rs 100 each (a/b) Rs 7.64 9.48

Diluted Earnings per share

Diluted shares are the shares that would be outstanding if all possible sources of conversion, such as convertible
bonds and stock options, were exercised. Specific financial figures in terms of fully diluted shares outstanding
are reported to allow investors to properly assess the company's financial situation. There are no dilutive shares
during the year of the company.

5.12 Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years are as follows.

NPR. '000
Not collected for more than 5 years 243 243
Not collected up to 5 years - 1,397
Total 243 1,640

5.13 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

Cost on deposit liabilities 10.90 8.10
Yield on loans and advances 15.48 10.46
Net spread 4.59 2.36

Above yield and cost is calculated based on the annual average volume of loans, investments,
deposits, government bonds and other bonds/borrowings.

5.14 Employees Training and Development Fund
NRB Circular 10/073/74 requires banks and financial institutions to incur expenses towards employee training
and development equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year's total staff expenses. The appropriate training
and development fund is NPR 732,488. In the subsequent year, balance in this fund will be reclassified to Retained
Earnings and recognized as Personnel Expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Staff Cost (FY 2078/79) 47,642,125
Add: Appropriation from Profit during the year 1,429,263
Less: Training Expenses during the year (696,775)
Transferred to training fund for the FY 2079-80 732,488

Training Fund Movement during the FY 2079/80

Opening Training Fund 1,057,508
Transferred during the year 732,489
Closing Training Fund 1,789,997

Corporate Social Responsibility

NRB Circular 11/073/74 requires banks and financial institutions to create Corporate Social Responsibility
Fund and annually appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund. The fund is created
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towards covering the Company's expense in CSR activities in the subsequent year. Accordingly, the Company
appropriated NPR 750,148 to this fund for the reported period. In subsequent year, balance in this fund will be
reclassified to Retained Earning and recognized as CSR Expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense- The expenses for the period on Corporate Social Responsibility
amounts to NPR 434,711.

Particulars Amount In NPR

Net Profit for the year 75,014,783
Add: Appropriation from Profit during the year 750,148
Less: CSR Expenses during the year 434,711
Transferred to CSR Reserve for the FY 2079-80 315,437

During the FY 2079-80, the finance company has expended under CSR as per details below:

Awareness Program on FM 81,360
Mask, Sanitizer, Hand Wash and other items (COVID-19) 103,336
Wish Nepal Foundation for Cancer screening Health Camp 35,000
Global Money Week 56,340
Nirdhan Utthan Sanjibini Health 25,000
Ability Development Society of Nepal for Charity Golf Tournament 50,000
29th Anniversary Blood Donation Program 33,675
"We Are All Able" Charity golf tournament sponsorship 50,000
Total 434,711

CSR Fund Movement during the FY 2079/80

Opening CSR Fund 1,718,262
Transferred during the year 315,437
Closing CSR Fund 2,033,699

5.16 Regulatory Reserve

As required by NRB directive # 4, the Company has created Regulatory Reserve and movement of reserve during
the year is as follows:

Regulatory Adjustment:
Amount in NPR

Opening Balance 3,233,628
Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 1,066,023
Short loan loss provision on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) 7,477,848
Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) 548,919
Closing Balance 12,326,418

Interest receivable amounting NPR 7,329,644 after deducting outstanding interest on bad loan NPR 5,765,649.45
has been accrued to interest income.

Further Deferred tax assets is now transferred from regulatory reserve to deferred tax liabilities on subsequent
calculation as there is deferred tax liabilities on financial statement for the period.

The movement on regulatory reserve over the reporting period in line with guidelines for publication of Financial
Statement, Dividend declaration and Annual General Meeting 2080 has been presented as:
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Amount in NPR
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Opening Balance 1,292,153 - 4,386,259 - 806,079 - - - - 848,893 7,333,384
Transfer Fi Regulat
ransier oM RegUiatony 1202153 - 4386259 - I - : - 5678412
Reserve to RE
~ Transfer to Regulatory
~ - - - - - - - - -
E Reserve from RE 2913445 5,913,445
5 Closing Balance 5,913,445 - - - 806,079 - - - - 848,893 7,568,417
Opening Balance 5,913,445 - - - 806,079 - - - - 848,893 7,568,417
Transfer Fi Regulat
ransier rrom RegUiatony  so13445 - - - 806079 - - - : - 671952
Reserve to RE
0
S Transfer to Regulatory 1,426,861 i i i ) o ] ) 1426861
X Reserve from RE
5 Closing Balance 1,426,861 - - - - - - - - 848,893 2,275,754
Opening Balance 1,426,861 - - - - - - - - 848,893 2,275,754
Transfer Fi Regul
ransfer From Regulatory 1,426,861 i i i ) | i ) 1426861
Reserve to RE
Transfer to Regulat
g fanstertoregiiatory 2384735 - - - - . . - 2384735
& Reserve from RE
~
& Closing Balance 2,384,735 - - - - - - - - 848,893 3,233,628
Opening Balance 2,384,735 - - - - - - - - 848,893 3,233,628
Transfer From Regulatory
Reserve to RE 2,384,735
Q Transfer to Regulatory . . i i
S Reserve from RE 3,450,758 7,477,848 548,919
5 Closing Balance 3,450,758 - - 7,477,848 - - - 548,919 - 848,893 12,326,418

5.17 Provision for Employee Bonus
The Company has provided NPR 12,079,550 (Previous year NPR 14,046,794) as employee bonus computed at
10% of profit before tax (NPR 120,798,550).

5.18 Proposed Distributions (Dividend and Bonus Shares)
The Board of directors in its meeting dated December 12, 2023 has passed a resolution recommending for
distribution of cash dividend at 5.05% of paid up capital as at July 16, 2023.

Amount in NPR

Cash Dividend Declared 49,575,001.60 49,851,100
Bonus Shares - 23,008,200
Total 49,575,001 72,859,300
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5.19 Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5%
Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total shares during the year is as follows:

Promoter Shareholders

1 Sashi Raj Pandey 984,566 10.03 98,456,600
2 Dinesh Raj Joshi 791,513 8.06 79,151,300
3 Rabendra Raj Pandey 518,642 5.28 51,864,200
4 Chandra Lekha Pandey 465,923 4.75 46,592,300
5 Samson Jung Bahadur Rana 405,168 413 40,516,800
6 Saurav Pant 218,722 2.23 21,872,200
7 Nirmal Nath Pandey 159,269 1.62 15,926,900
8 Meeta Shah Rana 150,385 1.53 15,038,500
9 Govind Ballabh Bhatt 143,225 1.46 14,322,500
10 Rajesh Kumar Agrawal 113,676 1.16 11,367,600
11 Samaksha Nath Pant 111,130 1.13 11,113,000
12  Sujan Pant 107,594 1.10 10,759,400
13 Bimal Senchury 104,389 1.06 10,438,900
14 Dharma Raj Shrestha 95,040 0.97 9,504,000
15  Nawa Durga Trading Concern 89,125 0.91 8,912,500
16  Ambika Shah 86,998 0.89 8,699,800
17 Jyoti Kumari Sarawagi 77,242 0.79 7,724,200
18  Rana Bahadur Shah 74,568 0.76 7,456,800
19 Bishnu Prasad Upadhaya 64,960 0.66 6,496,000
20  Adarsha Raj Pandey 53,360 0.54 5,336,000
21 Sanjay Man Baisyat 49,208 0.50 4,920,800
Public Shareholders
22 CIT- Citizen Unit Scheme 138,165 1.41 13,816,500
23 Trishakti Jung Bahadur Rana 111,712 1.14 11,171,200
24 Prudential Capital Management Company Pvt. Ltd 101,715 1.04 10,171,500
25  Sabina Malla Shah 82,147 0.84 8,214,700
26 Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Limited 51,200 0.52 5,120,000
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5.20 Principal Indicators

FY 2018/19 | FY 2019/20 | FY 2020/21 | FY 2021/22 | FY 2022

/23
1. Net Profit/Gross Income Percent 19.50 1530 17.15 1.3 7.54
2. Earnings Per Share (as per NAS 33 - Earning per Share)  NPR 16.04 1350 1286 948 764
3. MarketValue Per Share NPR 15700 15900 489 29 375
4, Price Eamings Ratio Ratio 9.79 1178 3803 3153 49,07
5. Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent 13.00 10.53 11.00 760 5.05
6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 10.65 3.16 330 520 5.05
7. Interest Income/Loans and Advances Percent 1541 15.48 1440 1415 17.31
8. Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent 60.20 62.59 62.72 58.00 5843
9. Interest Expenses/Total Deposits and Borrowings Percent 8.30 897 7.19 869 1.1
10. Exchange Gain/Total Income Percent - - - ) -
11. Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 33.17 2439 2346 19.80 15.80
12. Net Profit / Total Loan Percent 3.00 237 247 163 131
13. Net Profit / Total Assets Percent 217 1.72 145 100 0.85
14. Loans / Deposits Percent 9331 89.77 7391 84.67 82,09
15. Operating Expenses/ Total Assets Percent 172 1.76 1.57 1.35 148
16. Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)
Core Capital Percent 2076 1869 2362 1907 19.58
Supplementary Capital Percent 0.89 0.77 123 114 117
Total Capital Fund Percent 2166 19.46 2485 2021 2075
17. Liquidity (CRR) Percent 029 028 044 045 037
18.Net Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit Ratio 0.14 067 089 060 1.05
19. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 490 481 493 471 459
20.Book Net Worth NPR (in lakhs) 1212 11576 12792 13346 1358
21.Book Net Worth per share NPR 138 140 144 139 138
22 Number of Shares No. 8100000 8290350 8901349 986750  gg1683)
23. Number of Staff No. 8 83 80 7 84
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6 Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements

= E E Variance
o £ £
= o - @
T & L.
Statement of Financial Position 2a s & Reasons for Variance
SE e
- W - WU
Q < Q <
Q © Q<
w S w S
<< i < in
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 350,954 350,954 0 0.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 313,276 313,276 (0) 0.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial i i i
Institutions

Derivative financial instruments. - - -
Other trading assets - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 305,773 305,773 - 0.00%

Write Back of Provision and Recognizing
Loans and advances to customers 5,339,817 5,335,765 (4,052) (0.08%) Interest Income as per NRB Guidelines on
Interest Income due to write back of Provision.
Investment securities 2,372,629 2,373,826 1,197 0.05% NFRS 9 adjustment
Current tax assets 15,178 10,621 (4,557) (30.02%) Tax impact

Investment in subsidiaries - - -
Investment in associates - - -

Investment property - 11,870 11,870 Reclassification
Right of Use (ROU) assets was presented

Property and equipment 108,439 141,131 32,692 30.15% under other liabilities in unaudited financials
with net of lease liability

Goodwill and Intangible assets 1,012 1,012 0

Deferred tax assets - - -

Other assets 17,306 21,306 4000 23.11% \TRo 9  deferred  employee
expenditure

Total Assets 8,824,385 8,865,534 41,150

Liabilities

:?:;E :Stiannsk and Financial 424315 422,538 (1,777)  (0.42%) Reclassification to deposit from

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 184,246 179,600 (4646) (2520 CUstomers

Derivative financial instruments - - -

Deposits from customers 6,803,496 6,809,918 6,422 0.09% Reclassification

Borrowing - - -

Current Tax Liabilities = = =

Provisions - - -

Deferred tax liabilities 19,374 19,761 386 1.99% Audit Adjustment
Due to changes in Bonus Amount, ROU was

Other liabilities 42,190 75,547 33,357 79.06% npresented net of lease liability in unaudited
financials

Debt securities issued - - -

Subordinated Liabilities - - -

Total Liabilities 7,473,620 7,507,364 40,166

Equity

Share capital 981,683 981,683 = 0.00%

Share premium - - -

Retained earnings 51,771 50,766 (1,005) (1.94%) NFRS adjustment

Reserves 317,310 325,721 8,411 2.65% NFRS adjustments

Total equity attributable to equity 1350764 1358170 7,406

holders

Total liabilities and equity 8,824,384 8,865,534 47,572
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Statement of Profit or Loss £ = £ S E Reasons for Variance
S .0 < .8 9
~ U E » U £
v € o v € o
S5 | 288
< L wn < L wn
Interest income 993,785 994,914 1,129 0.11% Audit Adjustment
Interest expense 777,758 778,116 359 0.05%
Net interest income 216,027 216,797 771 0.36%
Fee and commission income 24,623 25,870 1,247 5.07% Reclassification
Fee and commission expense 137 170 33 24.13% Reclassification
Net fee and commission income 24,486 25,700 1,214 4.96%
Other operating income 10,272 9,818 (454) (4.42%) Reclassification
Total operaing income 250,784 252,316 1,531 0.61%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for 26,790 12,744 (14,046) (52.43%) Reclassification due to acceptance
loans and other losses of NBA
Net operating income 223,994 239,571 15,577 6.95%
Personnel expenses 75,130 76,455 1,325 1.76% chcuarlal S CECE
adjustments
Depreciation 7,104 14,799 7,695 108.33% Depreciation on ROU assets
Other operating expenses 45,340 39,598 (5,741) (12.66%) Reclassification
Operating profit 96,420 108,719 12,298 12.76%
Non-operating income/expense - = = 0.00%
Profit before tax 96,420 108,719 12,298 12.76%
Income tax 28,926 33,704 4,778 16.52% Tax impact on income and expenses
Profit /(loss) for the period 67,494 75,015 7,521 11.11%
Sanshar Sharma Lilamani Neupane Mamata Adhikari Ram Krishna SharmaWagle ~ As per our rqport of even date
Head: Accounts/Finance Chief Executive Officer Director Director Pratik Khanal
Managing Partner
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari  Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga  pinesh Raj Joshi Sashi Raj Pandey P &B. Associates
Director Director Director Chairman Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: December 12,2023

q00 | 3afxt affe ufdaed 008 /oco



‘ Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

AUTG Mg hele T B gollold U= U Felm

Aikhd J2ATETd) JT2ATId J2ARTl JAddoEh
foIGIIIDT 2008 B foIG2rd 20 (3) I (8) AMISTHADY
UAIfOThOT

U, Mot deon Fameer! Re™eae 9 S9adT SR 9Ual fAqee aen e s9ifm
g T gy

- I IJUTHAT S B |

foreRl Fore soaoa 13 IR Rie 9@d dedl e

- |l 9TGHAl WUD B |

e Fege dweme Fame, H&fgo a1 guRage 1. st dwerer Ry fFoes
- UISAT YURT B |

UfSewl aiffe den iy AMRY 991 G99 "u@dl Ay -

IS AR qHT - fAfd 00 U R T

Ry AR - fAfd 200 #RR 23 T

PARIEGD! W9, Uqfd, gR-de, difed, doa-wn e e gfwn, s 3 faa,
FFEARERT SIS Fe® FARTD! HHaARl a1 v fAfFaEd sgawen wg/Fags!

- WY

UG M JhaIe ARl dal RAFRAES! 008 wihd RS SR MRS © |

e yemafe e qg/Tvge!

-

UG RIS JhdTe 3N1fde uRmafe AIFHEs) 2003 Wigd RIE &R TRI@! B |

IR® fAa=v1 srRIfRfY wo/aaeer -

PG ARG Fa=avEer faf i Jon $RifdffEs T8 @1 IR@T © |

IR® =1 gomdiel oIt g+ afafdy o7 Wg/TWge TR WY A B BRO:
AIRS FI=orhre Sz don Feawmufha deal A= affies 769 T $1 4sed! © |

! @i fddes 00 /oco | 109



, 3l SGATC o BUS HBIsalloy . fdf.

¥ Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

AYTS g Fepale T qETD] golSTd UH U HReIl

T HiET
FIAET, FISATST
W o 09-¥¥q3309

o ieia- b N ST
TaE fa. 9 9 . / regenra /o e /og fufs : 2050/02, 0%
a7 5
o o FEAT e Hraw wEmr s,
fewftaeR, wrEATET |

oy aiffe Faeirg Faaor w1 wewfar wsamasm |
HETYY, _
T FET U9 TLET ATAF Y 09 /50 H F@IILrEnr U fad faaver qar g
yfqaeAeedn ATanT iRegea quiEen TR dfEusr Fithadeser greraur @ anifEe

frdvmes Saeudesar ATAENE AT aibE gfaaedel g O GEmTd T T

gifde a9 098 /50 &1 d@uder quwl affe fad faan yenm w0 geafa gam i

FERT AT B | G, YIS qEE W OAER WifdE a6 098 /50 IS AanTEy

FHMENT qfgml faavurda gATRT $.4,098% 89 Y- qE 050 AR HATHAT FEH W@hl =ehl

il €.25,9%,53,3001- H 4.0 ufqerad g7 #1397 I@FH 3. ¥ %Y,\9 00RO UG @Il (

ATALTAT A FX WATTAAR] AT wHA) T g T8 Afe qranv v afigd qus

FaET WA faaver 79 Sieia gee afusn 2R avd fieEr 9 19y |

() S JATE QST AT FIAT FHe wguATArE Fiafesear TE |

() T¥ FHare T THEd HLIH T 9% /050 FHINTH FEAT SEIRT 9T ATAFATAT BRI
Feritr =T forameor ey sqaearar quisaAT 9TeET THEA |

(3) & YAE T FETYA, Ted IedM (Kye), TRETE Qmad, dqaredr, q=a1 gfafd, |
AT AEH AMIAET AT AraiE SEIaEE, aed A@IIdEE a9 7d a6
ArTTFT BFTTET TT. TN FaeT TEA |

qadia
W"(&
(FESHAT 9THT)
39-faa9E

& qurel g e, d& aqn fad g frame faamr
oft Jurer g 3, faeirr gear qufeasmo faamn, s g |
#1 IBS (Individual Bank Supervisor) Officer

qQoR | SHAft aiffs gfragT 2068 /oco



3l ScaCdioe UUS WBISalcd . fad.

Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

N TG M PpAIE T G D] A T U He

91 ScACdoe UUS WBISollod ob. .
Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

(s g dwdie 1 alel gereEuE uTe deen)
Dilli Bazar, PO, Box: 10717, Kathmandu, Nepal, Tel: 4422038, 4426146, 4415344, 4417558, Fax.977-1-4421779, Email infof@shreefinance.com.np
as? 'ﬂ'l'r.%
)

TH.: 3050/59 —¥¥0 fafa- 2050/0¢ 0

A TUTT AL B
fareira gwar qufeasor faam

ferear- faefrr feramor weprer g |
HERY

YA AT 8l fadamrdr w3 wen 14 g by veaea, o e 050,69
fafq 2050/0% /0% FF. 46 THAE T FAAETE AT 098 /50 @ AEE AR
Wﬂmﬂﬂ%mﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬂﬁl?ozotﬁwinﬁqﬁﬁﬁmmﬁnﬁm
afafaar Fo% 7 339 91E WA ATER T WST Fig 9 el afE whraeaEr g6e
36 fASer geprerT e =ERT A e

q. fadv awifs #91 yare sy afrard som @t s g
AT e frares =R aag ey )

z. qﬁmwﬁ%m#.%mcoaﬁmmwmammmﬁmﬁﬁm

SOMEIREC Y

Fahmaﬁfawwim?amam,mq%%ﬁwﬁquw, AT,

WWWWWWWW@W

Fae1 fqars @R iy T |

-

-

CIRIE]
. qUTHT UL qE
% aur faeirr "= frame fasqm ©
(hi::%

Sl i gfadagT 008/oco | 03



3l SGATC o BUS HBIsalloy . fdf.

4 Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

AYTS g Fepale T qETD] golSTd UH U HReIl




Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

AYTS Mg Jepale T GHBT golroid UH UK EReT

. 3 ScANCIice UUS BISolley ob. .




3l SGATC o BUS HBIsalloy . fdf.

4 Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

AYTS g Fepale T qETD] golSTd UH U HReIl

Q0% | safe! affe ufides 2068/oco



g oRIe S §8IGY T TR TR g




dAZ Aqlet, JA Aqrel

Elegfronic

3t Scaedice UUS biSallod . fod.

Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.
NS Mg APATS T AADT SOOI T T Rl
STHIR, JHYP! AR, U g . 0999 BTSHTIS!
B BYRQ03I¢, BYKEGABE, 849438Y |, TR 09-9-849600R
E-mail: info@shreefinance.com.np

= I 3 ST B uimaA
. dioT Driidat B

5. GGl il bl

= IAART BT

fRIETR, ARy - 029493083 BPY, IeIdle - olac-803903
WRear, g R - 099-4REYoly SR, HedT - 0¢¢-80099y
difesdl, Hleayg - oWE-4EARY  WTETATy, HHA(TIAA) - 0(¢-8R003¢
ISER, TAgDl - oB¢c-484302  FEIMBHUS-¢, BRINIIST - 09-831R93¢
TUET, FHrATENH - 0l9¢-89¢00R  TATSI®, WETGEHl-g, - 09-430993Y
SNSRI, 9T - 09§-89003 TR, BIGHTSHY - 09-84CHRY




